
Table of Contents - NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting
1  May 24, 2021 NFWB Meeting Agenda
2  2020-2021 Annual Stormwater Report-Draft for Public Comment
3  Draft April 22, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
4  Draft April 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes
5  Draft May 3, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
6  Draft May 4, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
7  Draft May 5, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
8  May 24, 2021 Personnel Actions
9  RESOLUTION 2021-05-001 - Requiring Use of Safety Shoes
10  RESOLUTION 2021-05-002 - Extension of Insurance Broker
11  RESOLUTION 2021-05-003 - Approve Deduct Meter Niagara Golf Partners
12  NGP Cover Letter and Engineering Report
13  2017-2020 Golf Course Water and Sewer Historical Usage
14  RESOLUTION 2021-05-004 - Bank on Buffalo Authorized Signers
15  Bank on Buffalo Authorized Signer Resolutions
16  RESOLUTION 2021-05-005 - Award Bid for WWTP Project 11 Construction
17  Project 11 Award Recommendation and Bid Tabulation
18  RESOLUTION 2021-05-006 - Use of NYPA Relicensing Settlement Funds for Capital Projects

2
8

61
63
73
75
77
79
80
82
83
86
93
94
95

109
111

114

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 1



Page 1 of 6

AGENDA 
Meeting of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

May 24, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 
***Meeting to be held via conference call pursuant to  

Executive Order 202.1 as extended by 202.107 – visit NFWB.org for call-in details.***  

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters 

a. Asklar (Board Member/Chairman of Finance) ____  

Forster (Chairman) ____  

Kimble (Board Member) ____  

Larkin (Board Member/Vice Chairwoman/Governance Chairwoman) ____  

Leffler (Board Member) ____ 

b. Comments from Chairman Forster 

c. Letters and Communications 

d. Public Comments on Draft Annual Stormwater Report 

e. Other Public Comment (Public comments other than those on the Draft 
Annual Stormwater Report may be submitted in writing to be read by the 
Secretary and must be received by 12:00 p.m. on May 24, 2021.  Comments 
may be summarized when read.  Email comments to scostello@NFWB.org or 
mail c/o Sean W. Costello, 5815 Buffalo Ave., Niagara Falls, NY 14304) 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 2



Page 2 of 6

f. Approval of Minutes  
i. Draft Minutes for April 22, 2021 Special Meeting 

ii. Draft Minutes for April 26, 2021 Meeting 
iii. Draft Minutes for May 3, 2021 Special Meeting 
iv. Draft Minutes for May 4, 2021 Special Meeting 
v. Draft Minutes for May 5, 2021 Special Meeting 

2. Acting Executive Director – Sean Costello 

3. Superintendent – William Wright 

a. City Cooperation – Tree Removal and Crack Filling 

4. Engineering – Douglas Williamson 

a. Updates 
i. Bollier Ave. Grant Reimbursement 

ii. Grant Funded Water Line Projects 

5. Personnel Items – John Accardo 

a. April 26, 2021 Personnel Actions Sheet 

6. Information Technology (IT) – Sean Costello 

7. Finance – Brian Majchrowicz 

8. Questions Regarding April 2021 Operations and Maintenance Report 

9. Safety – Sean Costello 

10.  General Counsel and Secretary – Sean Costello 

11.  From the Chairman 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 3



Page 3 of 6

12.  Resolutions  

2021-05-001 – REQUIRING USE OF SAFETY SHOES 

2021-05-002 – EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT WITH BROKER FOR WORKERS 
COMPENSATION, PROPERTY, AND LIABILITY INSURANCE 

2021-05-003 – APPROVING DEDUCTION OF SEWER CHARGES FOR WATER USED 
FOR IRRIGATION – NIAGARA GOLF PARTNERS LLC 

a. Niagara Golf Partners Cover Letter and Engineering Report 
b. 2017-2020 Usage on Golf Course Irrigation Meter 

2021-05-004 – BANK ON BUFFALO DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT AND AUTHORIZED 
SIGNERS RESOLUTIONS 

a. Separate Resolutions for Seven Accounts 

2021-05-005 – AWARD BID FOR WWTP PROJECT 11, EXTERIOR PROCESS PIPING 
IMPROVEMENTS 

b. Bid Tabulation and Award Recommendation Letter 

2021-05-006 – USE OF NYPA RELICENSING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT FUNDS 
FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 

13. Unfinished/Old Business  
a. 18th Street Slip Line 

 Walk-through completed from Whitney Ave. to Ontario Ave. with City 
Engineering – discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

b. Roof Study 
 Jay Meyers from CPL stated this project is approximately 96% 

complete.  
 Further review is needed in some areas – will be sure to report all 

findings to the board as soon as they are made available -- discussed at 
board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

c. Beech Ave. Water Tower 
 Jay Meyers explains some modeling work is needed along with finalizing 

ideas for an ideal location (possibly Buffalo Ave.) 
 Beech Ave. is not an ideal location due to the need for a pump station. 
 Cost to complete the study – approximately $9,800 – discussed at board 

meeting held on 4/26/21. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 4



Page 4 of 6

d. Caulking Project WTP 
 Exterior caulking of the WTP was completed in 2020. 
 Interior caulking of the WTP is now needed  
 Mr. Costello was tasked to solicit bids – requesting CPL to prepare 

the specifications. 
 - discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

e. 56th Street Water Tower 
 CPL was tasked to explore ways to improve the functionality and 

eliminate the need for WTP operators to have to drain the water 
lower levels on a daily basis in order to recirculate the water; due to 
the lack of a recirculating pump and valve at the bottom of the tank - 
discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

f. Lift Station Roofs  
 Mr. Costello has been in contact with the maintenance department 

regarding the work that is needed; would prefer to keep the work 
in-house if possible - discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

g. Program Logic Controller (PLC) 
 (1) showing a processor error, (2) showing error - discussed at board 

meeting held on 4/26/21. 

h. Chlorine System 
 Adding a booster pump to the raw water chlorine feed would 

prevent loss of chlorine feed during a low-pressure scenario (i.e. 
Goodyear break).  

 Will also provide backup to chlorine dosage during backflow 
testing/repairs 

 WTP Chief Operator (Rob Rowe) met with Fluid Kinetics to discuss 
options. 

 CPL to provide drawings (April 2021) for submittal to DOH - 
discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

i. Emergency Backup Generators 
 In need of repair – multiple issues with transfer gear and controls. 
 1 unit has been determined to need radiator parts/replacements. 
 Work continues with Zenith – determined TS-2 and TS-3 need 

cleaning and lubrication, which involves removing power and 
running a separate generator to make the necessary repair. 

 Quotes have been received for auto switching main plant power feeds 
to lessen the risks involved with a generator failure (unknown). 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 5



Page 5 of 6

j. WTP Roofing 
 Area over front main entrance vestibule is leaking – creating issues 

with drywall mold and cracking. 
 Area over filter gallery with floating foam pieces – no leaks detected.  

Nearby roof drains have been cleaned to help with the issue - 
discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

k. Replacement of the outdated CO2 detection system. 
 Units are in house for installation and work is progressing 

(unknown). 
 - discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

l. Backflow Preventers 
 Need to be tested/repaired/replaced yearly or as necessary. 
 Larger units may cause the plant to lose chlorine capabilities – will 

now be tied in with chlorine system – experiencing pressure related 
issues on the Plant Water line. 

 Work may need to be subcontracted if in-house staff is unable to 
complete the necessary repairs.  

 - discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

m. Interior Lighting 
 High lift room has been updated by Ferguson Electric. 
 Low lift room to be completed next – will likely be completed by 

Ferguson Electric due to the safety concerns of completing the work 
in-house. 

 - discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

n. HVAC Rooftop & Make Up Air 
 Outdated units – need replacements – 4 out of the 5 units are 

inoperable. 
 AC-1 – rooftop unit over Operations Control Room is now replaced 

and awaiting final installation items. Startup to be completed shortly 
(10/16/2018). 

 Still in need of additional units – the pandemic has brought this to 
the forefront, as makeup air is potentially regulated in certain 
environments as well as air filtration ratings.  

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 6



Page 6 of 6

o. PACL System Upgrades 
 Need SCADA professionals to finish updating our program to match 

the 4 PACL pumps so that all 4 pumps can be utilized with SCADA 
control.  

 In-house work completed regarding the necessary pipes and valves. 
SOP’s have also been created for the new completed system.  

 PACL liners have been replaced (unknown).  
 - discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

p. Bulk Chemical Storage Liners 
 PACL liners complete – contractor has concerns about Fluoride 

toxicity. Maintenance department to follow up. 
 - discussed at board meeting held on 4/26/21. 

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

a. Complimentary Automated Meter Infrastructure (“AMI”) Propagation 
Study by Neptune 

b. Board Member Asklar – WWTP Break Room, Bathroom, and Shower Area 
Improvements 

15. Executive Session (if needed) 

16. Adjournment of Meeting  

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 7



 

 

DRAFT STORMWATER ANNUAL REPORT  
 

2020 – 2021 
 

Niagara Falls Water Board 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NYSDEC SPDES Permit NYR20A094  

May 7th, 2021 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 8



3258632975

2 0 2 1

N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

N i a g a r a F a l l s W a t e r B o a r d

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 9



9714632978

2021

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A N Y R 2 0 A

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 10



3855151783

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 11



-

( ) -

each

5690581587

Duplicate this page as needed to include information for each contact.

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

S e a n C o s t e l l o

A c t i n g E x e c u t i v e D i r e c t o r

5 8 1 5 B u f f a l o A v e n u e

N i a g a r a F a l l s N Y

s c o s t e l l o @ n f w b . o r g

9 7 7 0

283

N i a g a r a7 1 6 2 8 3

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 12



For each contact, select all that apply:
Principal Executive Officer/Chief Elected Official
Duly Authorized Representative
Local Stormwater Public Contact
Stormwater Management Program (SWMP) Coordinator
Report Preparer

MS4 Municipal Compliance Certification(MCC) Form

First Name

SPDES ID

Title

Last NameMI

Address

City State Zip

-
eMail

Phone

( ) -

Section 2 - Contact Information

Contact information must be provided for each of the following positions as indicated below:
1. Principal Executive Officer, Chief Elected Official or other qualified individual (per
GP-0-08-002 Part VI.J).

3. The Local Stormwater Public Contact (required per GP-0-08-002 Part VII.A.2.c & Part VIII.A.2.c).
4. The Stormwater Management Program (SWMP) Coordinator (Individual responsible for
coordination/implementation of SWMP).

5. Report Preparer (Consultants may provide company name in the space provided).
A separate sheet must be submitted for each position listed above unless more than one position is
filled by the same individual. If one individual fills multiple roles, provide the contact information
once and check all positions that apply to that individual.

Name of MS4

MCC Page 2

MCC form for period ending March 9,

County

Important Instructions - Please Read

2. Duly Authorized Representative (Information for this contact must only be submitted if a Duly
Authorized Representative is signing this form)

If a new Duly Authorized Representative is signing this report, their contact information must be
provided and a signature authorization form, signed by the Principal Executive Officer or Chief
Elected Official must be attached.

5690581587

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

D o u g l a s S W i l l i a m s o n

D i r e c t o r o f R e g / T e c h S e r v i c e s

5 8 1 5 B u f f a l o A v e

N i a g a r a F a l l s N Y 1 4 3 0 4

d w i l l i a m s o n @ n f w b . o r g

7 1 6 2 8 3 9 7 7 0 N i a g a r a

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 13



For each contact, select all that apply:
Principal Executive Officer/Chief Elected Official
Duly Authorized Representative
Local Stormwater Public Contact
Stormwater Management Program (SWMP) Coordinator
Report Preparer

MS4 Municipal Compliance Certification(MCC) Form

First Name

SPDES ID

Title

Last NameMI

Address

City State Zip

-
eMail

Phone

( ) -

Section 2 - Contact Information

Contact information must be provided for each of the following positions as indicated below:
1. Principal Executive Officer, Chief Elected Official or other qualified individual (per
GP-0-08-002 Part VI.J).

3. The Local Stormwater Public Contact (required per GP-0-08-002 Part VII.A.2.c & Part VIII.A.2.c).
4. The Stormwater Management Program (SWMP) Coordinator (Individual responsible for
coordination/implementation of SWMP).

5. Report Preparer (Consultants may provide company name in the space provided).
A separate sheet must be submitted for each position listed above unless more than one position is
filled by the same individual. If one individual fills multiple roles, provide the contact information
once and check all positions that apply to that individual.

Name of MS4

MCC Page 2

MCC form for period ending March 9,

County

Important Instructions - Please Read

2. Duly Authorized Representative (Information for this contact must only be submitted if a Duly
Authorized Representative is signing this form)

If a new Duly Authorized Representative is signing this report, their contact information must be
provided and a signature authorization form, signed by the Principal Executive Officer or Chief
Elected Official must be attached.

5690581587

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

C l a y t o n L H o t c h k i s s

S a n i t a r y E n g i n e e r

5 8 1 5 B u f f a l o A v e

N i a g a r a F a l l s N Y 1 4 3 0 4

c h o t c h k i s s @ n f w b . o r g

7 1 6 2 8 3 9 7 7 0 N i a g a r a

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 14



-

( ) -

Yes No

Watershed Improvement Strategy Best Management Practices

4643023765

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

W e s t e r n N Y S t o r m w a t e r C o a l i t i o n

c / o E r i e C o u n t y D E P N Y R 2 0

9 5 F r a n k l i n S t r e e t

B u f f a l o N Y 1 4 2 0 2

m a r y . m a c s w a n @ e r i e . g o v

7 1 6 8 5 8 7 5 8 3

M u l t i p l e T a s k s

M u l t i p l e T a s k s

M u l t i p l e T a s k s - T r a i n i n g & E d

T r a i n i n g & E d u c a t i o n

T r a i n i n g & E d u c a t i o n

T r a i n i n g & E d u c a t i o n

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 15



/ /

3165331518

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

S e a n C o s t e l l o

A c t i n g E x e c u t i v e D i r e c t o r

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 16



1100364151

2 0 2 1

Niagara Fall Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 17



Other

Other

4286299954

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

U s e o f G I S - S t o r m w a t e r C o m p l i a n c e

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 18



7870299956

DIY Videos

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

M S 4 P u b l i c B u i l d i n g s

K i o s k s / D i s p l a y s

L i b r a r y 3 7 E r i e 4 N i a g

C o u n t y S W C D s

T r a i n i n g - E d H a n d o u t s

w w w . e r i e . g o v / s t o r m w a t e r

h t t p s : / / n f w b . o r g / r e p o r t s / o t h e r /

7 6

1

1

1 0 2 4

4 2 3

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 19



0704299955

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 20



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

6932504403

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Identification of Pollutants of Concern; Waterbodies of Concern; Geographic Areas of Concern;
Target Audiences

Pollutants of Concern: sediment/silt; pathogens; floatables; phosphorous
Waterbodies of Concern: Cayuga, Bergholtz, Gill Creeks, Little Niagara and Niagara River
Geographic Areas of Concern: The Lasalle Sewer System Area
Target Audiences: households; developers; contractors; small businesses

4

As needed, update POCs, waterbodies of concern, geographic areas of concern and target audiences.
Continue to address via public education and outreach.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 21



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

6932504403

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Develop additional/update existing public education materials addressing stormwater pollution
prevention for general public, target businesses/activities and schools. Prepare posters that can be
placed within municipal buildings, libraries, and schools. Maintain a webpage to educate the public
on stormwater pollution prevention, the MS4 SWMPP and involvement opportunities.
Display/distribute public education materials and posters in municipal buildings and libraries.

Maintained records of number of educational materials distributed.
Rain barrel display at Niagara County DMV site - Niagara Falls.

4 2 3

Develop additional public education brochures - as needed.
Continue to display public education materials in municipal buildings and libraries.
Update webpage as needed with new educational materials.
Continue to reinforce the messages conveyed with printed materials & displays with use of additional
media when funding is available.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 22



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

6932504403

Teacher education packages are a bi-ennial BMP.

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Distribute Grades K-12 education packages.
Participate in educational programming.
Conduct annual Rain Barrel Painting Contest for schools/community groups in Erie/Niagara
Counties.

Due to COVID-19 pandemic, all school-based education and involvement initiatives were canceled.

0

Education packages will be updated & distributed March 2021 - March 2022 reporting cycle to
resume biennial implementation.
Participate in all scheduled school science fairs/events, Niagara County's Environmental Field Days.
Conduct annual Rain Barrel Painting Contest for K-12 schools/groups in Erie and Niagara County in
Fall 2021.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 23



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

6932504403

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Utilize public education display for outreach & education for at least two local community events or
set up public education display in a prominent location in a municipal building. Mount a permanent
wall plaque in a municipal building frequented by the public.
Utilize public education display for outreach & education at regional community events.

Set up/maintain public education display and mounted wall plaque in prominent locations in a
municipal building frequented by the public.
Maintain the permanent, wall-mounted plaque and stormwater display at the NFWB offices.
Due to COVID-19 pandemic, all public education display/activities at regional/ community events
were canceled.

1

Plan to use public education display at two local community events/locations by March 9, 2022
and/or continue use of public education display and permanently mounted wall plaque in prominent
locations in a municipal building frequented by the public.
Plan to use public education display at up to 25 regional community events by March 9, 2022.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 24



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

6932504403

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Post PSAs on WNY Stormwater Coalition webpage.
Use PSAs at public meetings, in school programs and at community events as appropriate.

DIY videos on rain barrel use/home composting; building a rain barrel; winterizing a rain barrel; and,
pop bottle rain garden demonstration.

PSAs on webpage (www.erie.gov/stormwater).
DIY videos on rain barrel use/home composting (647): https://fb.watch/4ty_vNXRLf/
building a rain barrel (1200): https://fb.watch/4ty_vNXRLf/
winterizing a rain barrel (155): https://fb.watch/4tz63_piOH/
pop bottle rain garden demonstration (222): virtual event

2 2 2 4

Continue to promote PSAs addressing stormwater pollution and water quality protection in WNY.
Use videos and/or PSAs at public education venues. Continue to pursue funding opportunities to use
local media outlets to educate the public.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 25



( ) -
( ) -
( ) -
( ) -
( ) -
( ) -

( ) -
( ) -
( ) -
( ) -

( ) -

4961183103

(All WNYSC meetings open to public)

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

1 0 7

3 9

1 3 7

H o u s e h o l d H a z a r d o u s W a s t e E v e n t s

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 26



1693183102

h t t p s : / / n f w b . o r g / r e p o r t s / o t h e r /

w w w . e r i e . g o v / s t o r m w a t e r

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 27



3714183108

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 28



-

( ) -

-

( ) -

-

( ) -

5441172015

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

W a t e r T r e a t m e n t F a c i l i t y

5 8 1 5 B u f f a l o A v e n u e

N i a g a r a F a l l s

9 5 F r a n k l i n S t r e e t R o o m 1 0 7 6

B u f f a l o N Y 1 4 2 0 2

7 1 6 8 5 8 7 5 8 3

w w w . n f w b . o r g

w w w . e r i e . g o v / s t o r m w a t e r

d w i l l i a m s o n @ n f w b . o r g

m a r y . m a c s w a n @ e r i e . g o v

N Y 1 4 8 1 3

7 1 6 2 8 3 9 7 7 0

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 29



/ /

/ /

0614183104

WNY Stormwater Coalition - April 2021

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 30



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

2013032775

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Identify key individuals and groups who are interested in/or affected by the permitting program.
Groups identified include: Erie County Environmental Management Council; Niagara County
Environmental Management Council; municipal Conservation Advisory Committees; Buffalo
Niagara Waterkeeper; Erie and Niagara County's Soil & Water Conservation Districts; Erie County
Water Quality Committee.

Periodic reports to Erie/Niagara County Environmental Management Councils; MS4 Conservation
Advisory Committees; Erie County Water Quality Committee. Participation of Erie and Niagara
County Soil & Water Conservation Districts (4); Buffalo Niagara Waterkeeper (1); PUSH Buffalo
(0) in WNYSC monthly meetings, SWMP and Annual Report review, trainings and activities.

5

Continue periodic reports to Erie/Niagara County Environmental Management Councils; MS4
Conservation Advisory Committees; Erie County Water Quality Committee. Continue to encourage
participation of Buffalo Niagara Waterkeeper; Erie County Soil & Water Conservation District;
Niagara County Soil & Water Conservation District, PUSH Buffalo and MS4 Conservation
Advisory Committee members in WNYSC monthly meetings, trainings & activities.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 31



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

2013032775

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Provide public with an ongoing opportunity to inspect Stormwater Management Program Plan
(SWMPP) and review/comment. Present the draft Annual Report at a meeting that is open to the
public and/or on the internet to solicit public review and comment.
Provide public notice about the presentation in accordance with State Open Meetings Law or other
local public notice requirements.

Number of known SWMPP reviews/comments (39 DIY video viewers evaluated the DIY Rain Barrel
demonstration as a Public Engagement strategy).
Number of attendees at public meeting (WNYSC: 27; MS4: TBD).
Number of known Annual Report reviews/comments (0)
Number of known webpage reviews (0).

6 6

Continue to provide public with an ongoing opportunity to inspect SWMPP and review/comment.
Continue to present the draft Annual Report at a meeting that is open to the public and/or on the
internet to solicit public review and comment.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 32



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

2013032775

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Inform and encourage residents about opportunities to participate in stormwater pollution prevention
programming including: community clean up initiatives such as Household Hazardous Waste
collections, Great American Clean Ups; Buffalo Niagara Waterkeeper Spring/Fall Shoreline Clean
Up and Keep America Beautiful Fall Beach Sweep; and, annual Erie-Niagara County Rain Barrel and
Compost Bin Sales.

Number of Household Hazardous Waste collections (3 events plus continuous "by-voucher"
collection); number of participants (2,581)
Number of clean up events (107); number of participants (578)
Number of Rain Barrels/Composters sold (380); number of participants (245)

3 4 0 4

Erie County: Publish a notice in local paper & Erie County Household Hazardous Waste webpage to
notify residents of the Collection events. Niagara County: Educate residents on options for disposal of
household hazardous waste, location, schedule and guidelines for facilities accepting the waste
(year-round;ongoing). Annual rain barrel/composter sale.
Continue to track community clean up events and other stormwater related community involvement.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 33



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

2013032775

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

There is a feedback mechanism on the Niagara Falls Water Board webpage that provides the public
the opportunity to contact us regarding stormwater management concerns.

Number of responses received.

0

Continue to provide feedback option on webpage in the form of a name/contact number and public
comment forms.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 34



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

2013032775

N/A

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Identify Contact Person for Stormwater Program.

Stormwater Management Officer is currently Douglas S. Williamson.
Stormwater Management Officer listed in MS4 Reference Guide on WNY Stormwater Coalition
webpage.

Identify Stormwater Management Officer in SWMPP, update as needed.
Identify Stormwater Management Officer in MS4 Reference Guide on WNY Stormwater Coalition
webpage, update as needed.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 35



7368169291

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

9 6 1 0 0

9 6

P r i o r i t y 1 , 2 a n d 3 o u t f a l l s

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 36



%

5953169299

1 5

1 5

1 5

h t t p s : / / e r i e n y . m a p s . a r c g i s . c o m /

a p p s / w e b a p p v i e w e r / i n d e x . h t m l ? i d =

7 1 7 9 8 4 b d 0 3 e 7 4 f 2 3 b 0 2 9 6 4 6 1 e 3 e a 9 9 5 7

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 37



%

5820169292

2 0

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 38



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

9126383899

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Update outfall data and map as needed.

Outfall inspections continued under a prioritized system. In 2020, 96 outfalls were inspected for
priority 1,2 and 3 (48" & greater, SSO's).
GIS outfall map is current.

96

Continue outfall inspections according to schedule.
Continue to update existing information/add new outfalls as needed.
Continue to maintain and update GIS outfall map.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 39



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

9126383899

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Outfall Reconnaissance Inventory (ORI) - routine dry weather visual inspections of outfalls.

Outfall inspections continued under a prioritized system. In 2020, 96 outfalls were inspected for
priority 1,2 and 3 (48" & greater, SSO's).
GIS outfall map is current.

9 6

Priority 1 (18%) of the 96 total outfalls are planned for inspection in the next reporting period that
ends in early March of 2022. Plan to continue outfall inspections according to prioritized schedule.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 40



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

9126383899

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Pollutant source tracking procedures to detect and address non-stormwater discharges, including
illegal dumping, as needed in response to public complaints or by scheduled inspection of outfalls.

The Niagara Falls Water Board inspects outfalls on a yearly basis under a prioritized system. Based
on public complaints received or visual inspection of the outfall, the NFWB plans to sample these
outfalls for pollutants as needed.

Plan to sample outfalls discharging during dry weather to determine presence of pollutants.
Plan to conduct trackdown sampling/investigation as needed. An illicit Discharge Track Down
Protocol and Sampling Procedures have been developed and will be followed. Testing equipment is
available and additional training for sampling and analysis will continue in 2021.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 41



5624056356

Via NYS 4 Hour Erosion & Sediment Control Training 

e
x

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

0

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 42



3951056357

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 43



9445612573

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

0

0

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 44



-

( ) -

-

( ) -

-

( ) -

7482169883

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 45



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

7935007876

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Conduct SWPPP review for all permitted construction sites to ensure consistency with State and
local erosion and sediment control requirements and NYS Design Standards.

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

0

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 46



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

7935007876

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Conduct inspections of permitted construction sites that discharge stormwater to the MS4 as often as
needed to ensure compliance with GP-0-20-001 (or previous permits for projects approved prior to
January 29, 2020).
Issue enforcement actions to owners/operators of construction sites that are not in compliance with
GP-0-20-001 (or previous permits for projects approved prior to January 29, 2020).

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

0

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 47



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

7935007876

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Provide the public with an opportunity to review and comment on proposed design plans and
construction projects.

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

0

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 48



1048119251

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 49



9091119257

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 50



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

1610116332

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Develop an inventory and inspection program for post-construction stormwater management
practices.

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

0

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 51



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

79350078761610116332

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Conduct maintenance on post-construction stormwater management practices as needed.

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

0

The Niagara Falls Water Board is a non-traditional MS-4 without legal authority for this MCM.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 52



6894134836

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 53



.

6445134838

1 9 9 9

1 4

1

4

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

03/08/2021

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 54



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

7123078468

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Inspect catch basins and clean as needed.

In 2020:
Number of catch basins inspected/Cleaned: 1999

Continue to inspect catch basins and clean as needed.

1 9 9 9

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 55



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

79350078767123078468

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Conduct Storm sewer pipe cleaning.

In 2020, there were 60.4 miles of Sanitary sewer and storm sewer pipe cleaned.

Continue to clean storm sewer pipes on a prioritized basis.

6 0 . 4 m

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 56



(ex.: samples/participants/events)

69325044037123078468

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

Create an inventory of operations/activities/facilities that are subject to environmental assessment
requirement.
Conduct environmental assessment of each operation/activity/facility every three years.

Number of environmental assessments performed.

Conduct environmental assessment of each operation/activity/facility every three years.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 57



6327042251 N/A

N/A

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 58



2244042255

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 59



2404042253

2 0 2 1

Niagara Falls Water Board N Y R 2 0 A 0 9 4

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 60



Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
Special Meeting 

 of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

April 22, 2021   6:30 PM  

Note: This meeting was held via conference call pursuant to Governor Cuomo’s 

Executive Order 202.1 as extended by Executive Order 202.101. as extended through 

May 6, 2021 by Executive Order 202.101. 

AGENDA 

1. Attendance  

Chairman Forster called the special meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. 

a. Asklar __P__Forster __P__Kimble__P__Larkin__P__Leffler__P__ 

2. Interviews of Executive Director Candidates:  Motion to enter into executive 
session for the purpose of considering matters leading to the appointment or 
employment of a particular person (Public Officers Law § 105(f)). 

Motion by Board Member Asklar and seconded by Board Member Larkin to enter 
executive session at 6:34 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y_ 

Motion carried, 5-0.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 61



Page 2 of 2 

3. Adjournment of Meeting 

[Note:  The Board returned to the open meeting session at 9:47 p.m.] 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Larkin to exit 
executive session and return to the open meeting at 9:48 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y_ 

Motion carried, 5-0.

Motion by Board Member Asklar and seconded by Board Member Leffler to adjourn at 
9:49 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y_ 

Motion carried, 5-0.

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 62



Page 1 of 10

MINUTES 
Meeting of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

April 26, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 
Note: This meeting was held via conference call pursuant to Governor Cuomo’s Executive Order 

202.1 as extended by Executive Order 202.101. as extended through May 6, 2021 by Executive 

Order 202.101. 

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters 

Chairman Forster called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

a. Asklar __P__ Forster __P__ Kimble __P__ Larkin __P__ Leffler__P__ 

b. Letters and Communications 

There were no letters/communications to discuss.  

c. Public Comment (The meeting notice provided that public comments were to 
be submitted in writing to be read by the Secretary and to be received by 
12:00 p.m. on April 26, 2021). 

There were no public comments received for the April 26, 2021 board meeting.  

d. Approval of Minutes  
i. March 22, 2021 Meeting 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Leffler to approve the 
March 22, 2021 meeting minutes.  

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

ii. April 13, 2021 Special Meeting 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve the 
April 13, 2021 special meeting minutes. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 63



Page 2 of 10

2. Executive Director  

Mr. Costello gave the Board an update regarding health insurance rates. Mr. Costello 
explains that the renewal rate will remain the same as the prior policy year. Mr. Costello notes 
Resolution 2021-04-006, authorizing acceptance of the rates, has been included in the Board’s 
agenda packets for review and approval.  

Mr. Costello states he was notified early this morning of a motor vehicle accident involving a 
utility pole located at the corner of Buffalo Ave. and 56th St. (the accident occurred at 
approximately 1:30 a.m. on 4/26/21), causing a power outage at the WTP. The generators at 
the WTP kicked on and functioned properly powering the plant processes. The power from the 
generators only supplies power to the plant process areas, excluding the office areas, 
computers, heat, etc. National Grid estimated that the time to complete the necessary repairs 
would be approximately 8 hours – National Grid postponed beginning the repairs in order to 
allow the NFWB to “switch over” to our secondary feed line. Mr. Costello explains that this 
feed line is a separate line from National Grid, however, it is equal to the regular feed. 
Mr. Costello states that we have never had cause to switch over to that feed in the past; given 
the lengthy period that power would be off, it made sense to “switch over.” This was 
successfully completed around 7:45 a.m. with support from Ferguson Electric, due to the 
unfamiliarity our internal staff had with this type of work. Since the work was completed, the 
plant has experienced no further power issues. Mr. Costello notes, between the 1:30 a.m. 
collision and the 7:45 a.m. “switch over,” there were periods where the plant did experience 
electrical service for the entire plant – the significance of that is the generators powered the 
plant as intended but did not “switch off” as they should. Out of the three separate feeds that 
should have successfully “opened” and “closed” only one of the three was properly turning 
off when the power was restored. NFWB staff was able to successfully “cut” the power to the 
necessary feeds and turn off the generators. Mr. Costello explains that this process identified 
two things, the first being the generators worked successfully and demonstrates the value in 
the investment that the Board has made with the generators over the recent years. The second 
being the attention needed to address the controls of the generators. This is currently being 
addressed and quotes are being obtained. In closing, Mr. Costello shows his appreciation to 
the staff for how exceptionally well this issue was handled and their response to the incident in 
the middle of the night. In particular, Mr. Costello expressed appreciation for the operator on 
duty Dave Roeser, WTP Chief Operator Rob Rowe, Supervisor of Maintenance Joe Argona, 
Electrician Neil Zysk, & Mechanic Dan McGovern.  

3. Superintendent  

a. Large Meter Information 

Mr. Wright states he met with Deputy Director of Financial Services (Brian Majchrowicz) and 
Supervisor of Meters (Robert Reid) to gather the necessary information to respond to 
Mr. Forster’s request for information about large meters.  This information was distributed to 
all Board Members. Mr. Wright asks if any of the Board Members have any questions 
regarding the information they received. No questions were asked. Mr. Wright states the meter 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 64



Page 3 of 10

shop will begin calibrating the large meters (approximately 20) and checking their accuracy, 
however, the tool needed for the calibration of the 8-inch compound meters broke. The broken 
meter has been packaged and is prepared to be sent out for repair, however, this repair could 
take upwards of a few months. Mr. Wright is requesting permission to purchase a new 
calibrator in order to maintain two on site in case another situation such as this arises in the 
future (see Resolution 2021-04-008).  

b. Planned Demonstration of Movable and Remote Readable Leak Spy Data 
Logger  

The supplier of this device is scheduling a demonstration for Water Board staff to evaluate its 
effectiveness. 

c. Fleet Vehicle Update 

Mr. Wright states the NFWB had its annual meeting with Enterprise which recommended to 
trade in nine Ford F-150’s (most of which are 2019, two are 2018) in order to lower the 
monthly payments for each vehicle due to the current state of the used car market. The 
previous Director of Financial Services approved the transfer of the nine leased Ford F-150’s 
and the NFWB will be receiving nine new leased vehicles (approximately $31,000/year cost 
savings).  

Mr. Forster questions whether the NFWB will be obtaining any additional electric vehicles, 
other than the two the NFWB currently has. Mr. Wright states he spoke with our 
representative from Enterprise and electric trucks are not yet available but it was mentioned 
that GM will begin the fabrication of the “smart” pick-up trucks next year. These pick-up 
trucks will be electric, combined with gas.  

4. Engineering 

Mr. Williamson states he has nothing new to add. 

5. Personnel Items 

a. April 26, 2021 Personnel Actions Sheet 

Motion by Board Member Asklar and seconded by Board Member Larkin to table “section B” 
of the Personnel Action Sheet (recommended promotion) from MW2 position to MW3 
position.  

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 65



Page 4 of 10

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Leffler to un-table the 
previously tabled “section C” of the Personnel Action Sheet (to hire an electrician). 

Board Member Kimble questions the total cost of re-hiring an electrician, including the cost of 
benefits. Ms. Kimble also questions if there is a proper budget line to cover the cost of the hire. 
Mr. Costello states the total cost, including benefits, is approximately $78,000. Mr. Costello 
states he spoke with the Deputy Director of Financial Services (Brian Majchrowicz) regarding 
the savings of the personnel budget lines, this year’s budget reflected personnel budget lines 
for the Director of Administrative Services ($90,000/year) along with the Executive Director 
position ($120,000/year) for the first few months of the 2021 that have not been utilized due to 
the vacancy of those positions. The totals of those budgeted salaries are in excess of the 
salary/benefits amount needed to fill the electrician position ($78,000/year). Board Member 
Kimble shows concern regarding the cost of the electrician position with the unknown salary 
of the potential new hire for the Executive Director position.  

Board Member Leffler questions whether an “in-house” electrician would have changed the 
outcome of the power outage/generator issue versus having Ferguson on site. Mr. Costello 
explains that the NFWB’s electrician (Neil Zysk) responded and the only reason Ferguson 
Electric was needed was due to the fact that in the last 20+ years, the NFWB had never 
completed a “switch” such as the one that was needed this morning. This situation could have 
been potentially hazardous due to the high levels of voltage involved. Mr. Costello states that 
without a second electrician at the WWTP, in order to produce the work needed, the NFWB 
will either need to hire temporarily out of the union hall or potentially contract out work that 
we may have otherwise have been able to perform in-house. Mr. Costello emphasizes the 
importance of an in-house electrician in order to continue the daily preventative maintenance 
work that is needed, along with the consistent repairs that are needed due to the corrosion of 
the electrical wires that takes place due to the nature of the WWTP.  

Board Member Kimble explains that she does not discount the need to hire an additional 
electrician, her main concern is the financial aspect.  

Chairman Forster states during his most recent tour of the WWTP, the need for an additional 
electrician was brought to his attention by the Chief Operator of the WWTP (Bob Dunn). It 
was also brought to the Chairman’s attention the need for some lighting repairs at the WTP.   

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion to un-table “section C” of the Personnel Action Sheet (to hire an electrician) carried, 
5-0. 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve “section 
C” of the personnel action sheet (to hire an electrician).  

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 66



Page 5 of 10

6. Information Technology (IT) 

Mr. Costello states he has no new IT developments to report.  

7. Finance 

In connection with an inquiry raised at the work session regarding a budget amendment to 
cover a bulldozer rental, Mr. Majchrowicz states he was not a part of the budget amendments 
completed in March; therefore, he is unsure why the more funds than were needed for the 
rental of the bulldozer equipment were moved from the “temporary payroll” budget line in 
order to cover the cost.  

Chairman Forster seeks confirmation that the figure that appeared on the invoice was the 
amount that was paid. Mr. Majchrowicz states that is correct. Mr. Majchrowicz states the 
invoice reflects $8,413.20 and additional funds may have been moved in order to cover any 
future work/rentals that may be needed.  

8. Questions Regarding March 2021 Operations and Maintenance Report 

No questions were asked.  

9. Safety 

Nothing new to report.  

Chairman Forster states that the individual that was hired for the Safety position has not held 
a safety meeting.  

Mr. Costello states he is currently working to reinstate safety training and expects to see that 
take place in May.  

No further questions were asked.   

10.  General Counsel and Secretary 

Nothing new to report.  

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 67



Page 6 of 10

11.  From the Chairman 

Chairman Forster thanked his fellow Board Members for all of the time and effort that has 
been put forth over the last month, including all scheduled and special meetings along with 
any of their own time they have spent while they continue their search for the new 
Executive Director. 

12.  Resolutions  

2021-04-001 – ESRI SOFTWARE LICENSE RENEWAL AGREEMENT 
a. Esri Renewal Agreement for 2021-2024 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Leffler to approve. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-04-002 WWTP SPDES PERMIT RENEWAL ENGINEERING AND SCIENTIFIC 
SUPPORT SERVICES 

a. AECOM Proposal dated March 31, 2021 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-04-003 – AUTHORIZING OUTSIDE PIPES CREW LEADERS TO TAKE HOME 
WORK TRUCKS TO SPEED EMERGENCY RESPONSES 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Larkin to approve. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 68



Page 7 of 10

2021-04-004 – REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR WWTP PROJECT 9,  
INTERIOR PROCESS PIPING IMPROVEMENTS, AND DIRECTING REBID 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Asklar to approve. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-04-005 – TRANSFER STATION COATING FOR WWTP CHEMICAL BULK 
STORAGE TANKS 211-A, 216, AND 217 

a. Niagara Coatings Estimate dated March 22, 2021 

Motion by Board Member Asklar and seconded by Board Member Larkin to approve. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2021-04-006 – ACCEPTING BLUE CROSS HEALTH INSURANCE RENEWAL RATES 
a. Renewal Executive Summary 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Kimble to approve. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

WALK-ON RESOLUTIONS 

2021-04-007 – STIPEND FOR THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Larkin to waive the agenda 
deadline policy in order to “walk-on” Resolution 2021-04-007. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Larkin to approve 
Resolution 2021-04-007. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 69



Page 8 of 10

2021-04-008 – LARGE METER TESTER 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Kimble to waive the agenda 
deadline policy in order to “walk-on” Resolution 2021-04-008. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Kimble to approve 
Resolution 2021-04-008. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 

13. Unfinished/Old Business  

a. 18th Street Slip Line 

Mr. Wright states a walk-through was completed from Whitney Ave. to Seneca St. with 
City Engineering on   Discussion regarding the work that is needed took place and a check to 
the County Health Department for plan review was provided to City Engineering.  

b. Roof Study 

Mr. Meyers from CPL states the roof study is in the final stages of completion (approximately 
96% complete). 

Chairman Forster questions the work that is still needed. 

Mr. Meyers explains further review is needed in a few areas and then sent to the manufacturer 
who provided the warranty on the roofs for a final review. Mr. Meyers states he will report all 
findings to the board as soon as they are made available. 

Board Member Kimble questions the cost to complete the roof study. 

Mr. Meyers states approximately $500. 

No further questions were asked and there was no objection from the Board to finish the roof 
study. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 70



Page 9 of 10

c. Beech Ave. Water Tower 

Mr. Meyers states there is some modeling work left to complete and finalizing some ideas for 
an ideal location still is needed (possibly on Buffalo Ave.) 

Mr. Meyers states Beech Ave. is not an ideal location since a pump station is needed. If the 
water tower is located on Buffalo Ave. the tower could be filled directly from the WTP, 
negating the need for a pump station. 

Chairman Forster questions the additional cost for completion. 

Mr. Meyers states the cost to complete the study would be approximately $9,800.  

No further questions were asked and there was no objection from the Board to finish the 
study. 

d. Caulking Project WTP 

Chairman Forster states the caulking project was brought to his attention during his tour of 
the WTP with Chief Operator (Rob Rowe). Last year the Board approved the caulking project 
for the exterior of the WTP, however, the inside needs to be caulked as well. 

No objection from the board. 

Mr. Costello was tasked to solicit bids while leaning on CPL to prepare the specifications for 
this project. 

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

a. 56th Street Water Tower 

Following discussion from the work session, Chairman Forster explains WTP operations must 
drain the water tower levels down on a daily basis in order to recirculate the water, due to the 
lack of a recirculating pump along with the lack of valve at the bottom of the tank. He would 
ask that CPL review whether this can be improved. 

No objection from the board. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 71



Page 10 of 10

b. Lift Stations 

Mr. Costello has been in contact with the maintenance employees regarding some of the work 
that is needed for the lift station roofs. Mr. Costello states he is still working through the 
numbers but would prefer to keep the work in house if possible.  

Chairman Forster agrees that he would like to keep the work needed at the lift stations in 
house. He also discussed driveway dealing as a potential area for work to be performed in 
house. 

c. Sanitary Flow Regulators 

Chairman Forster closed by stating his appreciation for all of the time that Board Members 
have been putting in over the past month in connection with the Executive Director search. 

15. Executive Session (if needed) 

The board did not enter executive session. 

16. Adjournment of Meeting  

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Larkin to adjourn at 
5:47 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__ Forster __Y__ Kimble __Y__ Larkin __Y__ Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 72



Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
Special Meeting 

 of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

May 3, 2021   6:30 PM  

AGENDA 

1. Attendance  

Chairman Forster called the special meeting to order at 6:47 p.m. 

a. Asklar _P_Forster _P_Kimble_P [by phone]_Larkin_P_ Leffler_P_ 

2. Interviews of Executive Director Candidates:  Motion to enter into executive 
session for the purpose of considering matters leading to the appointment or 
employment of a particular person (Public Officers Law § 105(f)). 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Leffler to enter 
executive session at 6:49 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 73



Page 2 of 2 

3. Adjournment of Meeting 

[Note:  The Board returned to the open meeting session at approx. 9:00 p.m.] 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Larkin to exit 
executive session and return to the open meeting at 9:01 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Asklar to adjourn at 
9:02 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 74



Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
Special Meeting 

 of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

May 4, 2021   6:30 PM  

AGENDA 

1. Attendance  

Chairman Forster called the special meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 

a. Asklar _P_Forster _P_Kimble_P [by phone]_Larkin_P_ Leffler_P_ 

2. Interviews of Executive Director Candidates:  Motion to enter into executive 
session for the purpose of considering matters leading to the appointment or 
employment of a particular person (Public Officers Law § 105(f)). 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Asklar to enter 
executive session at 6:32 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 75



Page 2 of 2 

3. Adjournment of Meeting 

[Note:  The Board returned to the open meeting session at approx. 8:16 p.m.] 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Larkin to exit 
executive session and return to the open meeting at 8:17 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

Motion by Board Member Leffler and seconded by Board Member Larkin to adjourn at 
9:18 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 76



Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
Special Meeting 

 of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

May 5, 2021   8:00 PM  

Note: This meeting was held via conference call pursuant to Governor Cuomo’s 

Executive Order 202.1 as extended by Executive Order 202.101. as extended through 

May 6, 2021 by Executive Order 202.101. 

AGENDA 

1. Attendance  

Chairman Forster called the special meeting to order at 8:01 p.m. 

a. Asklar __P__Forster __P__Kimble__P__Larkin__P__Leffler__P__ 

2. Interviews of Executive Director Candidates:  Motion to enter into executive 
session for the purpose of considering matters leading to the appointment or 
employment of a particular person (Public Officers Law § 105(f)). 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Leffler to enter 
executive session at 8:03 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 77



Page 2 of 2 

3. Adjournment of Meeting 

[Note:  The Board returned to the open meeting session at approx. 8:42 p.m.] 

Motion by Board Member Larkin and seconded by Board Member Asklar to exit 
executive session and return to the open meeting at 8:42 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

Motion by Board Member Kimble and seconded by Board Member Leffler to adjourn 
at 8:43 p.m. 

Asklar __Y__Forster __Y__Kimble__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 78



A.  PERSONNEL ACTIONS RECOMMEND TO HIRE

Line Item 

Number
Position Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

B. RECOMMENDED PROMOTION / MOVE / APPOINTMENT 

Line Item 

Number
Name and Position Type of labor move

Change in pay rate or 

grade

C.  PREVIOUSLY TABLED PERSONNEL ACTIONS (From 2021)

Line Item 

Number
Action and Position Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

1 Mark Richmond - MW2 Promotion to MW3
From Grade 9 ($15.88/hr) 

To 12 ($16.61/hr)

Name Position Department/Location Pay Rate

Name Last Day Worked Dept. Return Status

Bradberry Sr, 

Cortez
4/13/2021 OSM TBD Workers Comp 

James Joyce 1/5/2021 WWTP Maint TBD Workers Comp 

Houston, Artez 5/3/2021 WWTP Ops TBD Workers Comp 

E.  PERSONNEL ON LONG TERM LEAVE OF ABSENCE

 $.73 hourly increase equals approx. $1,510 annually.  

Tabled April 26.

Niagara Falls Water Board

  Personnel Actions and Report

Monday, May 24, 2021

Personnel Actions Sheet & Requested of the Board.  

All appointments are subject to the appointee meeting the minimum qualifications and all applicable civil service conditions.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Comments

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

D.  OTHER PERSONNEL ACTIVITY FOR BOARD NOTIFICATION 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 79



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-05-001 

REQUIRING USE OF SAFETY SHOES 

WHEREAS, the Water Board’s safety consultant, AFI Environmental, has reported 
multiple observations of employees not wearing proper personal protective equipment (“PPE”) 
because they are not wearing proper foot protection based upon their job functions; and 

WHEREAS, relevant OSHA regulations require that the employer ensure employees use 
protective footwear when working in areas where there is a danger of foot injuries due to falling 
or rolling objects, or objects piercing the sole, and whenever necessary to protect against hazards 
of processes or environment, including chemicals and wet surfaces; and 

WHEREAS, OSHA does not require the employer to pay for non-specialty safety-toe 
protective footwear (including steel-toe shoes or boots) but for most employees covered by 
collective bargaining agreements the Water Board does provide reimbursement of up to $200 per 
year for the purchase of safety shoes that meet the ANSI or ASTM requirements for those 
employees whose work requires protection against foot injuries; and

WHEREAS, to protect the health and safety of its employees, to meet its obligations as 
an employer, and to emphasize the importance it places on its issue, the Water Board desires 
formally by Resolution to require the use of appropriate safety shoes for all employees who work 
in any operations, production, process, inside or outside maintenance, meter shop, laboratory, or 
other area that may present hazardous conditions for which safety shoes are appropriate;

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 80



NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that all Niagara Falls Water Board employees who work in any operations, 
production, process, inside or outside maintenance, meter shop, laboratory, or other area that 
may present hazardous conditions for which safety shoes are appropriate shall wear ANSI or 
ASTM approved safety shoes while on Water Board property; and

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that all supervisors shall instruct employees regarding 
proper PPE and that failure to comply with or enforce PPE rules may result in disciplinary 
action; and

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that questions about PPE requirements shall be directed 
to the Deputy Director of Administrative Services who may seek guidance on specific situations 
from the Safety Consultant, as appropriate.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Acting Executive Director 
Deputy Director of Administrative Services 
All Supervisors 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable. 

On May 24, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 
vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 81



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-05-002 

EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT WITH BROKER FOR  
WORKERS COMPENSATION, PROPERTY, AND LIABILITY INSURANCE 

WHEREAS, in 2019 the Water Board conducted a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for an 
insurance broker for its workers compensation, liability, and property insurance coverages; and 

WHEREAS, the RFP provided that the broker would serve for a two-year term with up 
to three one-year extensions; and 

WHEREAS, USI was selected as the Water Board’s broker and is compensated through 
commission paid by the insurance companies providing coverage to the Water Board; and

WHEREAS, the Water Board would like to have USI begin the process for seeking 
competitive quotes for its various insurance coverages renewing in 2021;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby exercises its option for a one-
year extension and for USI to serve as broker for its workers compensation, liability, and 
property insurance coverages with expiration or renewal dates in 2021.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Acting Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable. 

On May 24, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 
vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 82



Page 1 of 3

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-05-003 

APPROVING DEDUCTION OF SEWER CHARGES FOR  
WATER USED FOR IRRIGATION – NIAGARA GOLF PARTNERS LLC 

WHEREAS, Niagara Golf Partners LLC (“NGP”) has contracted with the City of 
Niagara Falls to manage the Hyde Park Golf Course; and  

WHEREAS, NGP has made a written request for elimination of sewer charges for the 
water used to irrigate the golf course which has not previously been voted upon by the 
Water Board; and 

WHEREAS, the water used for irrigating the golf course is metered separately from the 
office, restaurant, and driving range that also are managed by NGP, and NGP does not seek relief 
from sewer charges for the consumption reflected by the rest of its operations; and 

WHEREAS, NGP has submitted an engineering report stating that no water used for 
irrigation burdens the Water Board’s stormwater or sanitary sewer systems; and  

WHEREAS, most stormwater drainage from the golf course flows directly into 
Gill Creek, which flows through the golf course property; and 

WHEREAS, Water Board staff have reviewed NGP’s submissions and confirmed that 
the only Water Board facilities that are impacted by drainage from the golf course are 
stormwater catch basins on or near Porter Road, which discharge directly to Gill Creek; and 

WHEREAS, deducting the sewer charges from the bill for meter No. 301149, the meter 
through which water used to irrigate the golf course passes, will not eliminate all sewer charges 
associated with the property because sewer charges will continue unabated on the other water 
consumed by the course restaurant, office, and driving range; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board’s Wastewater Regulations at 21 NYCRR 1960.8 provide 
that “In the event that consumptive use precludes the use of water meter readings for 
determination of user charges, alternate metering may be substituted on a case-by-case basis 
pursuant to Water Board review and approval”; and 

WHEREAS, requests for alternate metering must be carefully scrutinized because sewer 
charges support the cost of maintaining not only sanitary sewer infrastructure and treatment of 
wastewater, but also the stormwater collection system, and approval to deduct sewer charges 
from bills for metered consumption is appropriate only when it is possible to verify the 
consumptive use of metered water and that the metered water will not enter the sewer system, 
either through drains or as runoff; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board has determined that based on the specific facts and 
circumstances presented in this case, the deduction of sewer charges may acceptable; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board desires to condition its approval of the deduct meter on 
reasonable conditions; and 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 83



Page 2 of 3

WHEREAS, NGP has requested that the sewer charges be removed from the irrigation 
meter “for the past year and henceforth” but the Water Board will not retroactively approve the 
deduction of sewer charges from bills previously issued; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby approves the deduction of 
sewer charges for Niagara Golf Partners LLC (“NGP”) for meter No. 301149, the meter through 
which water used to irrigate the golf course passes, subject to the following conditions, to be 
agreed to in writing by NGP: 

(1) The agreement shall permit deduction of sewer charges from meter No. 301149 for bills 
issued after the date of this Resolution and through December 31, 2023.  On expiration of 
the agreement, the Water Board may but is not obligated to consider a renewal 
application with any conditions that it deems appropriate and subject to an appropriate 
fee; 

(2) The deduction agreement is personal to NGP and any successor operator must receive 
separate Water Board approval for deduction of sewer charges; 

(3) NGP will pay all costs associated with maintaining meter No. 301149 in a condition that 
is remotely-readable by the Water Board and any required backflow devices and other 
appurtenances that meet the requirements of Water Board staff; 

(4) No changes to meter No. 301149, or any pipes connected to that meter, may be made 
without the written approval of Water Board’s Executive Director; 

(5) NGP must permit inspections of records, plans, drawings, logs, or any other documents 
that may be used to verify that the water passing through meter No. 301149 is used for no 
purpose other than irrigation; 

(6) NGP must agree to allow the Water Board to inspect its facilities at any time to verify 
that the meter and associated piping is used only for irrigation of the golf course; 

(7) NGP must pay a one-time fee of $500 to cover the Water Board’s costs associated with 
processing this request and inspecting the meter and associated pipes;  

(8) NGP must pay a quarterly charge of $150 to cover the cost of reading and processing the 
deduct meter, inspections, and any other administrative costs; and 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 84



Page 3 of 3

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that after meter No. 301149 and the associated piping 
has been reviewed and approved by Water Board staff as in compliance with the terms of this 
Resolution and any other reasonable conditions imposed by the Executive Director, and so long 
as said meter and its remote reader are functioning properly, the Water Board will read the meter 
at the same time as it reads the property’s other water meters.  The sewer charges associated with 
the water consumed through meter No. 301149 shall be removed from the bill; and 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that no deduction of sewer charges for any 
previously-issued bills shall be allowed, and the agreement to deduct sewer charges will 
terminate immediately if Water Board staff determine that the water passing through meter 
No. 301149 is used for any purpose other than irrigation. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Acting Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable. 

On May 24, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 
vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 85



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 86



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 87



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 88



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 89



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 90



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 91



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 92



Golf Course Irrigation Meter 
Water and Sewer Historical Usage 

The following data pertains to the irrigation meter for which Niagara Golf 
Partners, LLC, seeks a deduct meter agreement.  Approval of a deduct meter agreement 
would mean elimination only of the sewer charge on this meter and the other meters 
serving the property would not be affected. 

Meter 301149 (Golf Course) 

2017:   Water- $18,989.58 

Sewer- $35,341.46 

2018:  Water- $54,562.25 

Sewer- $110,830.16 

2019:  Water- $19,024.08 

Sewer- $36,340.30 

2020:  Water- $16,008.62 

Sewer- $28,331.48 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 93



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-05-004 

BANK ON BUFFALO DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT  
AND AUTHORIZED SIGNERS RESOLUTIONS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board maintains seven depository accounts with 
Bank on Buffalo; and  

WHEREAS, Bank on Buffalo requires the Water Board to adopt a resolution for each 
such account in order to designate individuals authorized to sign checks and to take other actions 
with respect to those accounts; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board’s practice has been to have the Director of Financial 
Services and Chairperson designated as the authorized signers for checks; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby adopts and approves the seven 
draft resolutions for individual bank accounts that are attached hereto and made part hereof, with 
Chairman Nicholas Forster and Deputy Director of Financial Services Brian Majchrowicz, who 
is acting in the capacity of Director of Financial Services while that position is vacant, hereby 
designated as authorized to act on behalf of the Water Board with respect to its Bank on Buffalo 
accounts. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Deputy Director of Financial Services 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable. 

On May 24, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 
vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 94



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 95



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 96



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 97



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 98



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 99



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 100



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 101



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 102



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 103



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 104



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 105



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 106



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 107



NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 108



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-05-005 

AWARD BID FOR WWTP PROJECT 11,  
EXTERIOR PROCESS PIPING IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) contracted with 
JM Davidson, Inc. (“JM Davidson”), to prepare designs, plans, and specifications for certain 
work to improve exterior process piping at the wastewater treatment plant (“Project 11”),
required pursuant to Order on Consent R9-20170906-129 with the New York State Department 
of Environmental Conservation; and

WHEREAS, the project duly has been bid, and the low bidder is John W. Danforth 
Company at $626,800; and 

WHEREAS, JM Davidson recommends the award of the bid to John W. Danforth 
Company subject to approval of the partial waiver of the MWBE participation requirements 
sought by the contractor; and 

WHEREAS, up to one half of the cost of the work that is being awarded pursuant to this 
resolution will be reimbursable under the Water Board’s State and Municipal Facilities Program 
(“SAM”) Grant, Project ID No. 15688; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 109



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to contract with John W. Danforth Company for the WWTP Project 1 
Electrical Contractor work, for a total amount not to exceed the bid of $626,800 and subject to 
approval of the partial MWBE waiver requested in that firm’s bid. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
CIP Item No. WWTP 9 - WWTP Rehab Phase 4I – Process Piping Improvements 
(SAM Grant Project ID #15688) 

On May 24, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 
vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 110



 

525 Wheatfield Street, Suite 20 

North Tonawanda, New York 14120 

Phone: 716.453.1646 

 

 

May 14, 2021 

Mr. Douglas Williamson, PE 

Director of Technical & Regulatory Services 

Niagara Falls Water Board 

5815 Buffalo Avenue 

Niagara Falls, New York 14304 

 

SUBJECT: WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADES 

PROJECT NO. 11 REBID – EXTERIOR PROCESS PIPING IMPROVEMENTS 

RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT NO. 11G 

 

Dear Mr. Williamson: 

Bids for the above-referenced project (Project No. 11) were received by the Niagara Falls Water Board 

(NFWB) and opened on May 12, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. at the offices of NFWB. Bids were received as follows: 

Bidder     Total Bid 

John W. Danforth Company  $626,800.00 

4th Generation Construction Inc.  $682,000.00 

Mark Cerrone Inc.   $757,391.00 

Engineers Estimate   $616,680.00 

All Bidders submitted an appropriate Bid Bond. Enclosed is a tabulation of the Bids received. JM Davidson 

Engineering (JMD) reviewed the information submitted by the bidders and found no discrepancies. JMD 

conducted a pre-award conference via telephone on May 13, 2021 with John W. Danforth Company. Their 

responses to our questions were satisfactory.  

Enclosed is John W. Danforth Company’s MWBE/SDVOB Utilization Plan which indicates that they will not 

meet the goals as set forth in the contract documents. Also included is the apparent low bidder’s Request for 

Waiver with supporting documentation as to good faith efforts. During the pre-award conference, the 

Contractor noted they are continuing to work to solicit participation from MWBE/SDVOB contractors to assist 

with the site work portion of the project and will update the NFWB if successful in finding an opportunity to 

achieve more of their participation goal from that scope of work. 

As such, JMD recommends that the NFWB accepts the low bidder, John W. Danforth Company for Contract 

No. 11G: General Construction, Project No. 11, Exterior Process Piping Improvements in the amount of 

$626,800.00. 

Sincerely, 

JM Davidson Engineering, D.P.C. 

 

Michael Terrana, P.E. 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 111



  Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades, Project 11

  Niagara Falls Water Board, New York 

  May 14, 2021 

  Page 2 

 

 

cc via email:  Sean Costello, NFWB General Counsel and Acting Executive Director 

  Doug Williamson, NFWB Director of Technical and Regulatory Services 

  Ted Donner, PE, CPL 

  Jay Meyers, PE, CPL  

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 112



Niagara Falls Water Board WWTP

Rebid Project No. 11 Bid Tabulation

Bid Opening: May 12, 2021 at 10:00 AM

Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Item No. 1 - Sludge Lines

1A Demolition of Existing Interior Sludge Lines 1 LS 347,028.12$               7,000.00$         7,000.00$             12,000.00$       12,000.00$          14,000.00$       14,000.00$          

1B
Installation of New Interior Piping and 

Appurtenances
1 LS

-$                              54,052.00$       54,052.00$          231,000.00$     231,000.00$        221,740.00$     221,740.00$        

1C
Installation of New Yard Piping and 

Appurtenances
1 LS

-$                              198,400.00$     198,400.00$        122,360.00$     122,360.00$        164,146.00$     164,146.00$        

1D Core Drill 14 EA -$                              408.00$             5,712.00$             850.00$             11,900.00$          884.00$             12,376.00$          

1E Final Connection to Existing at Pump Building 7 EA
-$                              1,214.00$         8,498.00$             6,000.00$         42,000.00$          2,414.00$         16,898.00$          

1F Final Connection to Existing at Sludge Building 7 EA
-$                              1,214.00$         8,498.00$             2,600.00$         18,200.00$          2,414.00$         16,898.00$          

1G Application of Pipe Coating 1 LS -$                              7,900.00$         7,900.00$             11,000.00$       11,000.00$          11,256.00$       11,256.00$          

1H
Replacement of Gravity Thickener Drain Line 

Valve
1 EA

-$                              14,900.00$       14,900.00$          10,000.00$       10,000.00$          12,401.00$       12,401.00$          

1I Final Site Restoration 1 LS -$                              35,000.00$       35,000.00$          20,000.00$       20,000.00$          29,246.00$       29,246.00$          

Total Item No. 1 347,028.12$              339,960.00$       478,460.00$       498,961.00$       

Item No. 2 - Sludge Valve Replacement

2A Removal and Replacement of 4" Plug Valves 10 EA
82,811.88$                  2,210.00$         22,100.00$          2,300.00$         23,000.00$          2,364.00$         23,640.00$          

2B Removal and Replacement of 6" Plug Valves 4 EA
-$                              2,945.00$         11,780.00$          4,100.00$         16,400.00$          4,221.00$         16,884.00$          

Total Item No. 2 82,811.88$                33,880.00$         39,400.00$         40,524.00$         

Item No. 3 - Sedimentation Basin No. 5 Drain Line

3A Installation of New 18" Dia. PVC Drain Piping 225 LF
296.00$             66,600.00$          175.00$             39,375.00$          249.00$             56,025.00$          

3B Installation of New 12" Dia. PVC Drain Piping 1 LS
116,640.00$               16,200.00$       16,200.00$          6,000.00$         6,000.00$             13,570.00$       13,570.00$          

3C Precast Concrete Manhole Installation 2 EA -$                              14,150.00$       28,300.00$          9,000.00$         18,000.00$          11,773.00$       23,546.00$          

3D Final Site Restoration 1 LS -$                              57,900.00$       57,900.00$          30,000.00$       30,000.00$          48,675.00$       48,675.00$          

Total Item No. 3 116,640.00$              169,000.00$       93,375.00$         141,816.00$       

Item No. 4 - Sodium Hypochlorite Piping

4A Installation of 6" Dia. Sch. 80 PVC Casing Pipe 320 LF
116.00$             37,120.00$          80.00$               25,600.00$          82.00$               26,240.00$          

4B
Installation of Two Runs of 1" Dia. Sodium 

Hypo Tubing
730 LF

-$                              8.00$                 5,840.00$             18.00$               13,140.00$          17.00$               12,410.00$          

4C Final Site Restoration 1 LS 58,320.00$                  7,800.00$         7,800.00$             5,000.00$         5,000.00$             6,515.00$         6,515.00$             

Total Item No. 4 58,320.00$                50,760.00$         43,740.00$         45,165.00$         

Item No. 5 - City Water Service

5
Installation of 2" Dia. HDPE City Water Service

325 LF
11,880.00$       11,880.00$                  56.00$               18,200.00$          37.00$               12,025.00$          49.00$               15,925.00$          

Total Item No. 5 11,880.00$                18,200.00$         12,025.00$         15,925.00$         

Item No. 6 - Miscellaneous Contingency Allowance

6 Misc. Contingency Allowance 1 LS 15,000.00$       15,000.00$                  15,000.00$       15,000.00$          15,000.00$       15,000.00$          15,000.00$       15,000.00$          

Total Item No. 6 15,000.00$                15,000.00$         15,000.00$         15,000.00$         

Total Contract No. 11G 631,680.00$              626,800.00$       682,000.00$       757,391.00$       

Contract 11G, General Construction

Bid Item
Description

Engineer's Estimate Danforth 4th Generation Mark Cerrone

347,028.12$     

82,811.88$       

116,640.00$     

58,320.00$       

Quantity Unit

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 113



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2021-05-006 

USE OF NYPA RELICENSING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT  
FUNDS FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 

WHEREAS, in 2007, the Niagara Falls Water Board entered into a settlement agreement 
with the New York State Power Authority (“NYPA”) in connection with NYPA’s relicensing 
and order to resolve certain claims, including claims related to groundwater infiltration into the 
Falls Street Tunnel resulting from NYPA’s activities (“2007 NYPA Settlement”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the 2007 NYPA Settlement, NYPA paid to the 
Water Board the total sum of $19,000,000 that was restricted for capital improvement projects 
including, but not limited to, projects to rehabilitate the Falls Street Tunnel; and 

WHEREAS, a substantial portion of the 2007 NYPA Settlement funds were used in 
connection with projects to rehabilitate the Falls Street Tunnel and Iroquois Street Sewer, but 
there remains from the settlement funds a total of $2,786,581 currently held in the Water Board’s 
Treasury Investment Account and designated as “restricted” because of the requirement that 
these funds be used for capital projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board has multiple ongoing capital improvement projects, 
portions of which are grant reimbursable or financed through a long-term debt issuance when the 
projects are complete, but there is a significant delay between the Water Board’s payments to 
contractors and its receipt of the financing; and 

WHEREAS, in order to provide funds necessary to meet ongoing capital improvement 
project expenses, the Deputy Director of Financial Services recommends transferring $2,000,000 
of the $2,786,581 remaining from the 2007 NYPA Settlement that currently is held in the Water 
Board’s Treasury Investment Account and restricted for capital improvement projects to the 
Water Board Construction Account for to pay costs related to projects on the Water Board’s 
approved five-year Capital Improvement Plan; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 114



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED that the Deputy Director of Financial Services hereby is authorized to 
transfer $2,000,000 from the Treasury Investment Account account that is restricted for capital 
improvement projects pursuant to the 2007 NYPA Settlement Agreement and to deposit those 
funds in the Water Board Construction Account to be applied to the costs of projects on the 
Water Board’s approved five-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Deputy Director of Financial Services 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Transfer of funds between Water Board Treasury Investment Account and   
Water Board Construction Accounts. 

On May 24, 2021, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 
vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Asklar [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler  [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Nicholas J. Forster, Chairman

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

NFWB May 24, 2021 Meeting Agenda Packet - Page 115


	1  May 24, 2021 NFWB Meeting Agenda
	2  2020-2021 Annual Stormwater Report-Draft for Public Comment
	3  Draft April 22, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
	4  Draft April 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes
	5  Draft May 3, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
	6  Draft May 4, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
	7  Draft May 5, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
	8  May 24, 2021 Personnel Actions
	9  RESOLUTION 2021-05-001 - Requiring Use of Safety Shoes
	10  RESOLUTION 2021-05-002 - Extension of Insurance Broker
	11  RESOLUTION 2021-05-003 - Approve Deduct Meter Niagara Golf Partners
	12  NGP Cover Letter and Engineering Report
	13  2017-2020 Golf Course Water and Sewer Historical Usage
	14  RESOLUTION 2021-05-004 - Bank on Buffalo Authorized Signers
	15  Bank on Buffalo Authorized Signer Resolutions
	16  RESOLUTION 2021-05-005 - Award Bid for WWTP Project 11 Construction
	17  Project 11 Award Recommendation and Bid Tabulation
	210514 LTR NFWB Project 11 REBID ROA
	NFWB Project 11 REBID Bid Tabulation

	18  RESOLUTION 2021-05-006 - Use of NYPA Relicensing Settlement Funds for Capital Projects



